
COMMISSIONER  
BOARD MEETING 

March 12, 2020 
5:30 PM 

Fire District 7 Station 31 Training Room 

SNOHOMISH COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT #7 
WASHINGTON 

1



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

2



                                                                 
 
 
 

               

 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 

BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA 
SNOHOMISH COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT 7 

Fire District 7 Station 31 Training Room 
163 Village Court, Monroe, WA  98272 

 
March 12, 2020   1730 hours 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
UNION COMMENT 
IAFF 
Teamsters 
 
CHIEFS REPORT 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Approve Vouchers 
Benefit Vouchers: #20-00581 – #20-00595 ($540,008.02) 
Benefit Vouchers: #20-00596 – #20-00597 ($20,658.58) 
Benefit Voucher: #20-00598 ($972.50) 
AP Vouchers: #20-00599 – #20-00715 ($622,613.91) 
 
Approve Payroll 
March 13, 2020; provided at meeting 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Approve Regular Board Meeting Minutes – February 27, 2020 
 
Correspondence 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
Discussion 
COVID-19 
Fire District Name 
ALS Service Agreement with District 5 Sultan 
Allied Construction Settlement 
Capital Facility Plan 
Standards of Cover 
Mobile radio purchase 
2019 Lake Stevens Fire Audit 
North Battalion Landscaping RFP 
 
Action 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Discussion 
Station 71 Station Alerting Upgrade 

3



                                                                 
 
 
 

               

 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

Paramedic Recruitment  
Budget Amendment 
Driver License Requirements for Logistics Technicians 
 
Action 
Acting Medical Services Officer (MSO) MOU 
 
COMMISSIONER COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Joint Fire Board with Mill Creek (Elmore / Fay / Waugh): 
Finance Committee (Elmore / Snyder / Waugh / Woolery): Thursday, March 12, 2020, at 9:00 a.m. in the Admin 
Building POD. 
Policy Committee (Elmore / Edwards / Schaub / Woolery): 
Labor/Management (Waugh / Fay): 
Contract Bargaining – IAFF Local 2781 (Waugh / Fay): TBD 
Shop Committee (Edwards / Gagnon / Snyder / Woolery): 
Strategic Plan Committee (Fay / Schaub / Snyder / Steinruck): 
Capital Facilities Committee (Gagnon / Schaub / Snyder / Woolery): 
Government Liaisons:  
 Lake Stevens (Gagnon / Steinruck): 
 Monroe (Edwards / Snyder / Woolery): 
 Mill Creek (Elmore / Fay / Waugh): 
 Legislative (Elmore / Schaub) 
 
OTHER MEETINGS ATTENDED 
Snohomish County 911 (Waugh) 
Regional Coordination 
Leadership Meeting (Fay / Schaub): April 1, 2020 9am-12pm at Station 31 
Sno-Isle Commissioner Meeting: Held at South County Fire March 5, 2020. 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
ATTENDANCE CHECK 
Regular Commissioner Meeting, Thursday March 26 at 1730 - Station 31 Training Room 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
  

4



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

FIRE CHIEF REPORT 
 

5



 
Chief’s Report 3.12.20 

Operations 
Staff continues to collaborate with surrounding emergency response partners, hospitals, and 
providers in response to the corona virus outbreak. District operations continue to go well and have 
not been adversely affected by this situation. We continue to update a District 7 COVID-19 Incident 
Action Plan (IAP). The current Operational Period emphasis has focused on: best practices for 
protective measures for responders and families, communications and outline for further 
communications, operational guidelines, training, PPE, decon, reducing public gatherings, alternate 
work schedule, staffing planning, order of succession, planning for responder quarantine, staffing to 
maintain MSO staffing 24/7 during current operational period. 

The District sent a flyer to the homes of employees that described what we are doing to protect our 
employees and included information about what people can do at home to protect themselves and 
family members from the COVID-19 virus. 

March 2, we participated in our monthly Labor/Management meeting. 

No candidates sent letters of intent to go to Paramedic School. Several candidates stated interest; 
however, they did not meet the minimum qualifications. Staff worked with the Firefighter’s Union 
leadership to develop an MOU which adjusts the time in grade requirements on a one-time basis for 
our student paramedics. 
 
The “Nick of Time” juvenile health screening event scheduled to be at Lake Stevens High School on 
March 4, 2020 has been cancelled due to the COVID-19 outbreak. 
 
Staff is working to develop the 2019 SCFD #7 and Lake Stevens Fire Annual Report. 
 
Operations leadership continues to work with Planning leadership to evaluate and update an IAP for 
the Skyview Estates. Staff is researching the possibility of locating a reserve engine in the 
neighborhood while the road is impassible. 
 
On 2.10-2.12, the District welcomed and began processing 24 New Part-paid firefighters. The Part-
paid academy starts April 2, 2020. 
 
Operations staff conducted their Weekly Ops Division Staff Meeting. 
 
Operations staff conducted research and modeling in preparation for the Snohomish County Fire Dist 
#5 ALS Contract update. 
 
Operations staff performed DOH EMS re-certification processing. 
 
The District received 400 applicants through NTN for Full Time Firefighter recruitment. Currently, we 
plan on hiring nine replacement career firefighters with an anticipated hire date of July 1, 2020. 
 
 
 

6



 
Planning 
Preparing for code amendment standardization to provide consistency for Prevention Services 
personnel. 
 
Continued transition of Health and Safety program from B.C. Wirtz. B.C. Wirtz has a robust program 
in place so D.C. Messer will work closely with B.C. Wirtz to assure a smooth transition. Goal is for full 
transition to occur by 7.1.20. 

Continued policy and procedure analysis has started and we will plan a future meeting with the Board 
of Fire Commissioners’ Policy Committee. 

We are continuing the process of updating the District’s annual report with Operations. 

Logistics 
A landscaping maintenance Request for Proposal is pending for the North Battalion. 
 
We are working with architects Rice, Fergus, Miller to develop a comprehensive Capital Plan. 
 
The Logistics Division will be taking a tour of Clackamas County Fire District 1 Logistics Center on 
March 10th.  We are in the process of preparing Station 74 to serve as our Logistics Center. 
 
Technical Services 
Station 33:  We continue to work on the wrap-up of the settlement agreement with TCA and Allied.  
We are also working through the final warranty checklist as the warranty expired at the end of 
January. 
 
Technical Services has been working to equip administrative staff with laptops to be able to work from 
home. 
 
Administration 
It has come to the District’s attention that Washington State Law requires our three Logistics 
Technicians to attain a Commercial Driver’s License. The Logistics Technicians commonly shuttle fire 
engines and other apparatus between stations, the shop, and other locations. We are working with 
the Teamsters to bargain the impacts of the addition of this requirement. 

Administrative Staff is working to prepare Senior and Executive staff contracts. 

Preliminary preparation is being performed to develop the 2021 Budget line item detail buildout. 

Administrative Staff is working to update the Financial Forecasting model for 2020 rate adjustments, 
bond/levy options, Capital replacement plan 20-year buildout, and vehicle/property schedule 
development. 

Administrative Staff is working to complete the final LSF Washington State Auditor’s Office financial 
and accountability audit. 

A Finance Committee meeting is scheduled for Thursday, March 12, 2020, at 9:00 a.m. in the POD. 

On February 4, we met with Chief Halvorsen to move forward with negotiating an updated ALS 
Service Agreement. We met again on February 19 to present an ALS Service Agreement proposal. 
We met again on Wednesday, February 26 and received a favorable response to our proposal to 
create an interim agreement that would expire on 12/31/20. The proposal is based on the agreement 

7



 
with District 17(Granite Falls). We are planning a work session with Dist 5 to review the fine details of 
the proposal. Should discussions decline, we are preparing an updated letter from the Dist. 7 Board 
to Dist. 5 that gives notice of the District’s intent to bill District 5 patients directly. 
 
Staff attended the Northwest Leadership Seminar in Portland Oregon but returned home early after a 
Snohomish County and Health District “State of Emergency” was declared.  
 

8



What are we
doing to protect
our employees?
In light of the growing awareness of the COVID-19 virus, Fire District
7 wants our fire family to know the steps we are taking to protect our
personnel; your loved ones. Please know that the operations group is
meeting often to assess the situation and continue planning. Here are

some of the steps we are taking:

LIMITING EXPOSURE WHEN POSSIBLE TRIAGE PATIENT FROM AT 
LEAST 6 FEET AWAY.

LIMITING OUR EXPOSURE TO THE PUBLIC WITH CANCELLING 
EDUCATION EVENTS.

 SENDING ONE PERSON INTO ASSESS PATIENT WITH FULL PPE TO HELP LIMIT
EXPOSURE TO OTHER CREW MEMBERS IF POSSIBLE.

 PLACING MASK ON PATIENT AND WALKING PATIENT OUT TO GURNEY IF
CAPABLE AND TRANSPORT IS NECESSARY. 

THOROUGH CLEANING OF APPARATUS AND STATIONS ON A REGULAR  BASIS.

SNOHOMISH COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT 7

9



What can you do
at home?

We are recommending the same guidelines
identified by the Health District:

WASH YOUR HANDS OFTEN
WITH WARM WATER AND SOAP FOR AT LEAST 20 SECONDS. 

HAND SANITIZER IS GOOD IN A PINCH.

KEEP HANDS AWAY 
FROM MOUTH, NOSE OR EYES TO AVOID 

TRANSFERRING GERMS.

CLEAN AND DISINFECT
FREQUENTLY USED SURFACES LIKE COUNTERS, LIGHT

SWITCHES, DOORKNOBS, AND REMOTES.

COVER COUGHS & SNEEZES
WITH A TISSUE, THEN THROW 

TISSUE AWAY AND WASH YOUR HANDS

IF YOU FEEL SICK, STAY HOME
FROM WORK, SCHOOL, OR OTHER ACTIVITIES AND AVOID

CLOSE CONTACT WITH OTHERS.

Add a subheading

Stay Up-To-Date:
A "Family Access" portal has been created on the Fire District 7 

website. We will update families using that platform. Log in using:

Username: 
Password: 

You can also request to join our Fire District 7 internal Facebook group: 
Search: FD7 - Extended Family 

10



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



                                                                 
 
 
 

               

 
Page 1 of 6 

 
 

BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS MEETING MINUTES 
SNOHOMISH COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT 7 

Fire District 7 Station 31 Training Room 
163 Village Court, Monroe, WA  98272 

 
February 27, 2020   1730 hours 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
Vice-Chairman Snyder called the meeting to order at 1730 hours.  
Chairman Waugh, Commissioner Gagnon, and Commissioner Elmore were absent with prior notice. 
 
AGENDA CHANGES 
Consent Agenda addition: AP Vouchers #20-00456 - #20-00580 ($234,286.70) 
Consent Agenda addition: February 28, 2020 payroll; $1,035,614.35 
 
UNION COMMENT 
IAFF President Michael McConnell reported that things are going well and appreciates the joint effort and working 
as a team. 
 
CHIEFS REPORT 
Chief O’Brien discussed items from the Chief’s Report. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Approve Vouchers 
Benefit Vouchers: #20-00448 - #20-00455 ($645,115.49) 
AP Vouchers: #20-00456 - #20-00580 ($234,286.70) 
 
Approve Payroll 
February 28, 2020; $1,035,614.35 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Approve Regular Board Meeting Minutes – February 13, 2020 
 
Correspondence 
 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as submitted. 
Motion by Commissioner Schaub and 2nd by Commissioner Woolery 
On Vote, Motion Carried 6/0 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
Discussion 
Capital Facility Plan 
Dave Fergus presented the example proposal for the development of a comprehensive Capital Facility Plan that he 
had previously been reviewed with AC Silva and Chief O’Brien. This approach looks at the entire picture of all the 
station and looking to the future. He explained the trend towards large district wide improvement plans rather than 
one improvement at a time.  
 

19



                                                                 
 
 
 

               

 
Page 2 of 6 

 
 

Commissioner Fay inquired if the Fitch data had been provided to help drive the improvement plan. Mr Fergus 
noted that yes some of it is, but that it really comes back to the District and the Board to direct that. 
 
Commissioner Steinruck questioned what the timeline typically is for such a project. Mr. Fergus noted that it is 
more organic, looking at Administration size, where vehicle maintenance will operate out of, etc. but estimated 6-7 
months with no issues or setbacks at all. Prioritization comes down to cost and how much will be spent in each area 
of the district. 
 
It was noted that this project still falls within scope of an existing project with Rice, Fergus Miller for bid 
requirements. 
 
Chief believes this project to be a smart move with architectural credibility, costs, and helps set priority. The District 
plans to seek Board approval of the Capital Plan Development by Rice, Fergus, Miller at the March 12 Board 
Meeting. 
 
Fire District Name 
Snohomish County leadership has requested the District adopt a different name other than Snohomish County Fire 
and Rescue (SCF&R). The County leadership believed the name could lead people to believe that SCF&R is a branch 
of the County government. County leadership recommended a name that was less broad in scope. The district will 
convene the Name Team to develop a solution to present to the Board. The patch development contest and domain 
name selection is suspended until the name situation is resolved. Brief discussion took place surrounding options 
and what the County would allow. 
 
ALS Service Agreement with District 5 Sultan 
On February 4, the district met with Chief Halvorsen to move forward with negotiating an updated ALS Service 
Agreement. We met again on February 19 to present an ALS Service Agreement proposal and met again on 
Wednesday, February 26 to receive a reply to the District proposal. They looked at a similar cost model that is used 
with Granite Falls which is 29% of their EMS levy that builds a plan to pay by call. AC Huff will be meeting with 
their administrative chief to go over the numbers. The plan is just a one-year plan and retroactively pay for 2019 as 
well. The goal would be to develop a new inter-local agreement with SCFD #5, Granite Falls and SCFD #22 that’s 
fair to the taxpayers and all involved. The District hopes to have more information at the next board meeting. 
 
Commissioner Snyder inquired what the comparison was with what the District was asking and what the proposed 
agreement pays. It was noted that it is significantly lower. 
 
The Board request AC Huff to run a deficit comparison based on the Districts actual cost compared with what is 
being proposed in order to make a good informed decision. Possibly that deficit would play into the customers. 
Chief O’Brien explained that part of the difficulty has been coming to an understanding of what the value of the 
paramedic unit is. AC Huff briefly explained the cost breakdown of King County’s paramedic unit value and noted it 
is in the ballpark comparatively to what King County 911 has. Commissioner Fay believes the District will pay a 
political price if this moves forward at less than an equitable solution at this time. O’Brien commented that the 
District will put together a proposal for the next board meeting. Commissioner Fay commented that if collectively 
the District makes a decision to move forward with the agreement, he wants it to be very very clear in both 
negotiations and in the documentation that this is a one-year deal and on a specific date it is no longer an equitable 
solution in place. It is unsure what administratively is involved with billing District 5 customers directly. Admin 
Director Leah Schoof noted that Systems Design would aid in the process but there would be additional admin 
project work towards that. 
 

20



                                                                 
 
 
 

               

 
Page 3 of 6 

 
 

Standards of Cover Revision 
The district plans to work with Fitch and Associates to update our Standards of Cover to include the North 
Battalion. 
 
Allied Construction Settlement 
Still working on this settlement. 
 
North Battalion Landscaping RFP 
Currently working on some requests for proposal. 
 
Action 
Strategic Planning Facilitator Kendall Hodson has issued a scope of work proposal to help the District develop a 
new strategic plan. The process would begin in March and end in June of 2020. The cost of her proposal is $2,730. 
There will be a “Strategic Planning Working Group” that will be working with Kendall and the District would like 
two Commissioners to serve on the work group. The district plans to seek approval for the Board to authorize the 
Chief to enter into agreement with Kendall Hodson not to exceed $3,000 for strategic planning consulting services. 
 
Motion to approve the Strategic Plan Proposal with Kendall Hodson not to exceed $3,000. 
Motion by Commissioner Schaub and 2nd by Commissioner Steinruck. 
 
Commissioner fay inquired if this process was to update the process starting from scratch. Lake Stevens 
Fire and SCFD 7’s plans almost mirror each other and it was agreed that it was a great value for her 
services. 
 
On Vote, Motion Carried 6/0 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Discussion 
Skyview Estates 
District 7 Commissioners and leadership participated in a tour and community meeting at the Skyview Estates with 
U.S. Representative Susan Del Bene, Councilmember Sam Low, and representatives from Snohomish County DEM 
and the Sherriff’s Office. The District is working with the neighborhood and our response partners, the SCSO and 
DEM, to develop contingency planning for fire, rescue, and EMS responses. Commissioner Schaub noted that once 
the alternate road is built it would be nice to get a brush truck or something up there. Brief discussion took place 
surrounding all the reasonable options being explored for bringing water in the event of a fire to the community. 
Commissioner Fay wanted to note that he supports everything they’re doing up there and building this road will 
take 18 months to 2 years. He feels the PIO’s need to be protected in this in not getting worn down and to be careful 
in getting caught between groups and communities. 
 
HGAC Agreement and Resolution 2020-07 
HGAC is a nationwide government-purchasing cooperative that helps fire districts to secure fiscally responsible 
costs for purchasing equipment. District 7 has used the HGAC program to purchase the technical rescue apparatus 
and District 3 used the HGAC to purchase two fire engines. This agreement and resolution opens the ability to 
purchase any equipment/items covered by HGAC. AC Guptill explained that the cooperative allows the District to 
receive the discounted rates. There are some fees but has far outweighed the savings in the rate in the past. 
 

21



                                                                 
 
 
 

               

 
Page 4 of 6 

 
 

The district plans to seek the Board’s approval of the HGAC Interlocal Agreement and Resolution 2020-07 at the 
March 12 Board meeting. 
 
Motion to move this discussion to an action item and approve the HGAC Interlocal Agreement and Resolution 
2020-07. 
Motion by Commissioner Woolery and 2nd by Commissioner Steinruck 
On Vote, Motion Carried 6/0 
 
Budgeted SCBA Compressor Purchase 
A new SCBA fill station for Station 81 has been budgeted for 2020 out of the Equipment Replacement Fund. Once 
the HGAC Agreement is approved, the Board may authorize the purchase of the SCBA Compressor. This is a time 
sensitive purchase because the current Compressor at Station 81 will not fill our new SCBAs to the proper pressure 
of 5,500 PSI. We plan to seek the Board’s approval of this purchase not to exceed $87,000 at the March 12 Board 
meeting. 
 
Motion to move this discussion to an action item and approved the purchase of the SCBA Compressor in the 
amount of $86,745.58 not to exceed $87.000. 
Motion by Commissioner Steinruck and 2nd by Commissioner Schaub 
On Vote, Motion Carried 6/0 
 
Mobile Radio Purchase 
The purchase request is for 11 Motorola APX8500 mobile radios and associated equipment to replace the 800mhz 
system, which will equip the apparatus the District has on order. The purchase price will be $68,627.31 and will 
come from the Suppression Radio Budget.  While this expense was not specifically budgeted for, it will be revenue 
neutral, as Sno911 will reimburse the district this year. In order to facilitate that order, the District needs to enter 
into an Interlocal agreement with Sno911 in order to piggyback off their publicly bid contract with Motorola. The 
District plans to seek the Board’s approval of the Interlocal agreement and the radio purchase not to exceed 
$70,000 at the March 12 Board meeting. It was noted there was really only one sole provider, Motorola, for these 
radios. 
 
Snohomish County 911 RAADAR Program 
The District would like to enter into a data sharing agreement with Snohomish County 911 that will allow us to have 
access to a web-based viewer of our CAD system called RAADAR.  RAADAR is a program designed & developed by 
our neighboring dispatch center NORCOM. There is no cost for the software nor is there any access fees associated 
with using the system. The district plans to seek board approval at the March 12 board meeting. The RAADAR 
system is much more intuitive and has many more features that what the district currently has. 
 
Motion to move this discussion to an action item and approve the Authorized User Agreement with Snohomish 
County 911 allowing access to RAADAR. 
Motion by Commissioner Woolery and 2nd by Commissioner Edwards 
On Vote, Motion Carried 6/0 
 
Action None 
 
COMMISSIONER COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Mill Creek: In the next couple months, Commissioner Fay would like to get the board together to discuss the 
parameters of the Mill Creek contract and what that’s going to look like.  
 

22



                                                                 
 
 
 

               

 
Page 5 of 6 

 
 

OTHER MEETINGS ATTENDED 
Leadership Meeting (Fay / Schaub / Wells): Next meeting will occur April 1; 0900-1200 at Station 31. 
Sno-Isle Commissioner Meeting: The Next meeting is March 5, 2020 at South County Fire. It was noted that 
many commissioners will be attending the Leadership conference and will not be able to attend the next Sno-
Isle Meeting. 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
Commissioner Fay noted towards Ron Rassmussen that with the push of the media regarding the COVID-19, there 
will be a discussion at the Sno-Isle Meeting with other districts to coordinate messaging and what actions are being 
taken. He advised to spread the word to the PIO etc. to attend. 
 
ATTENDANCE CHECK 
All commissioners in attendance will be at the next Regular Commissioner Meeting, Thursday March 12 at 1730 - 
Station 31 Training Room.  
 
ADJOURNMENT Vice-Chairman Snyder adjourned the meeting at 1833. 
 
Snohomish County Fire District #7 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Commissioner Randy Fay 

 
 

____________________________________________ 
Commissioner Rick Edwards 

 
 

____________________________________________ 
Vice Chairman Troy Elmore 

 
 

____________________________________________ 
Commissioner Paul Gagnon 

  
 

____________________________________________ 
Commissioner Jeff Schaub 

 
 

____________________________________________ 
Commissioner William Snyder 

 
  

____________________________________________ 
Commissioner Jim Steinruck 

23



                                                                 
 
 
 

               

 
Page 6 of 6 

 
 

  
____________________________________________ 

Chairman Roy Waugh 
  
 

____________________________________________ 
Commissioner Randal Woolery 

 
  
  

____________________________________________ 
Chief Kevin K. O’Brien 

24



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

OLD BUSINESS - DISCUSSION 
 

25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



 

 

 
 
April 8, 2019 
 
Via email: gmeek@snofire7.org  
 
Fire Chief Gary Meek 
Snohomish Fire District #7 
163 Village Court 
Monroe, WA  98272 
 
Dear Chief Meek: 
 
Thank you for your inquiry and considering Fitch & Associates (FITCH) to continue our relationship with 
the Snohomish Fire District #7.  We are pleased to be able to provide information for your consideration.   
 
Per my Discussion with Chief Clinton and Battalion Chief Lundquist, we offer the following scope of work 
for your project: 
 
Update the current Standards of Cover document with the most recent calendar year of data (2018) or 
the most recent 12-month period.  This will include a full comprehensive data report and GIS report 
based on the newly formed entity.   
 
The full standards of cover report will be wholly integrated with the changing organization.  Therefore, 
the following deliverables will be provided: 

• Quantitative Data Analysis Report 
• GIS Report 
• Standards of Cover Report 

  
Price:  As proposed, a fixed price of $49,995 is offered that is inclusive of all reasonable and customary 

travel and expenses.   
 
Please contact me if we can answer any questions or offer additional information about scheduling next 
steps. Thank you again for allowing us to present this proposal for your consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Steven Knight, PhD 
Partner 

45



                                                                 
 

 

Background 

• Fitch and Associates completed a Standards of Cover (SOC) for Fire District 7 
• When Fire District 7 merged with Monroe Fire, Fitch updated the SOC to reflect the new agency 
• Chief Meek had directed Chiefs Clinton and Lundquist to reach back out to Fitch to get a 

proposal to update the SOC to include Lake Stevens Fire  
• SOC is a component of accreditation, which is a goal of our new agency 

 

Current Status 

• We have the proposal from Fitch to update the SOC to include Lake Stevens Fire  
• We need to fine tune to the proposal to assure that it is compliant with our goals of 

accreditation 
• Bottom line is the current proposal is good. We need to have some clarifying conversation with 

Fitch to assure that the final product meets our needs not only for adding the Lake Stevens Fire 
area but to assure compliance with accreditation standards. This may alter the body of work 
slightly which may impact the price of the current proposal 

• The good news is that we have much better data than we ever have. We also have in house 
talent that can provide work that we were not able to provide in the past. This should offset 
some of the increased price potential 

• We would like to have conversation with Fitch to clarify where we stand on the proposal. We 
are working on how best to connect with Steve from Fitch. We have options for a phone 
conference or an in person meeting. We are working through those details now 

• We will bring the finalized package to the board for approval and move forward with the SOC 
 

46



SNURE LAW OFFICE, PSC 
 

A  P r o f e s s i o n a l  S e r v i c e s  C o r p o r a t i o n  
 
 

 Clark  B .  Snure    O f  counse l  
 1930 -2014    Thomas  G .  Bu rke  
 
 Br ian  K .  Snure  
 b r i an@snure law .com 
  

612 South 227th Street ¨ Des Moines, Washington 98198 ¨ Telephone  206-824-5630 ¨ Fax  206-824-9096 

June 10, 2019 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Snohomish County 911 
 
From: Brian Snure 
 
Re:  Cooperative Purchasing under Motorola contract. 
 

Background. 

In 2018 Snohomish County issued an RFP for Radio System Replacement for Snohomish County 
Emergency Radio System (SERS).  The RFP was issued, administered and the contract was 
awarded to Motorola consistent with the competitive negotiation process pursuant to RCW 
39.04.270. 

Cooperative Purchasing. 

The County published notice of the RFP on its online portal (Exhibit A). The RFP included 
language stating that other governmental agencies would be authorized to purchase goods and 
services from the entity that was awarded a contract. The contract awarded to Motorola specifically 
authorizes Snohomish County 911 member agencies, the City of Bothell and any other government 
agencies that needs to interoperate with agencies that provide public services to Snohomish County 
citizens may purchase from the awarded contract.  

Summary.  Snohomish County 911 may enter into cooperative purchasing interlocal agreements 
with the specified governmental entities for purchases under the Motorola contract. 
 

47



Current Bid Opportunities

Visit the New
Purchasinq Portal

- Register as a Snohomish County vendor
- Apply for the Small Works Roster (application)

- View and/or download solicitations

Check out upcomino Purchasino Events

Public Private Partnershio. Parks & Recreation

Automated Voice Attendant System Expansion. AVST CX

Regional Destination Development. Marketing & Promotion

Excavator. Compact Radius

Estimating Services

Job Order Contracting for General Construction Services

PFC & Airport Busíness Consulting Service

SERS Radio System Repfacement

RFP-44-17S8

RFP-48-17S8

RFP-47-17S8

rTB-081-175R

RFP-56.17DW

RFP-54-17DW

RFP-55-175R

RFP-53-17DW

12t20t17 0

12113t17 0

12115t17 0

114t18 0

1t9t18 0

1112118 1

1131118 0

2119118 0

Currentty Posted Soticitations
To download a solicitation click on the títle above. You will be redirected to the Purchasing Portalto log in or
register to review and/or download solicitations

lmportant lnformation: No oral interpretations of the solicitations will be made. All questions must
be submitted in writing by Email to purchasinq@snoco.org. All answers and clarifications will be sent to
all plan holders via addendum.

48

briansnure
Rounded Exhibit Stamp



6t10t2019 Snohomish County Purchasing Portal

(https://snohomishcountywâ.gov/) Snohomish County Purchasing Portal414'
Snohomish Gounty

{ Return to List

Sue Ryan - Log Out (/logout)

0611012019 8:43:33 AM PST v

HelP @ 17¡g¡p7¡etpdesk)

EVALUATORS SCORING

Clone Delete i Edit

E a¡o
NUMBER

RFP-s:¡-17DW
TITLE

Rad¡o System Replacement for Snohomish County Emergency Radio System (SERS)

PROCESS

Offline
# BIDS RECEIVED

0
STATUS

ln Evaluât¡on

Cancel Bid

SETUP CLARIFICATIONS RESPONSE ANALYSIS AWARD LOG

SEfiINGS QUESTIONS PRICING DOWNLOAD DOCUMENTS BIDDERS CHECKLIST

NU¡¡eeR (o

RFP-53-1 7DW

rrle rÐ

Radio System Replacement for Snohomish County Emergency Radio System (SERS)

erorype O
RFP

pRocEss 0
Offline

¡vnlL¡gLEonru O
1111712017 9:21 AM

cLARtFtcAloN DEADLTNE O

oue o¡r¡ 'O o
2/21/20183:OOPM

STATU5

ln Evaluation

cLARt F|CATION ruOrtCe lÐ

No

BtD SUBMtSStON NOftCÊ

No

INCLUDE INTENTTO BID

No

USER GRoUP O
Finance

Hroorru ô
No

VENDORCATEGORVVIEW IÐ

No

eo¡r Locr rÐ

Unlocked

sro cRoup O

nccess O

https://snoco.procureware.com/Bids/f876c0ed-1 0c0-48c9-ac39-a6debce91 740?t=Setup&t2=Settings 1t2

49



6t10t2019 Snohomish County Purchasing Portal

Public

gtooeR ust¡ccess lÐ

Private

PRtctNG REsuLTs vtstBtLrry O
Hidden

BILLTO O

5HIP ITËMs TO IÐ

coNTAcrtNFoRM¡loru (l
purchasing@snoco.org

orscRtprtoru O
Snohomish County on behalf of the Snohomish County Emergency Radio System (SERS) is request¡ng proposals for the replacement of the
SERS emergency radio system.

Click on the documents tab to view and download the RFP and technical requirements.

Click on the events tab for information on the pre-proposal conference and site tours. Additional information is available ¡n Section 3 ofthe
technical requirements.

Questions and clarifications shall be submitted to purchas¡ng@snoco.org no later than 3:00pm on Wednesda¡ January 1 0, 201 8. Answers
shall be distributed and published via addendum. See Section 10 of the RFP for more information.

NOTE5 8
(only edl&ble by systen adn¡nistrotors)

\, CONTACTS A

J FULL NAME

,, Don Wolfe (.)

(1 record)

BID CONTACTTYPE

Pr¡mary

PHONE

(425)388-3344

t./+*
RECEIVE NOTIFICATION

yes

,¿*

û.¿'+$

v BID CATEGORIES (1 record)

CODE fITLE

Radio Communication

Equipment, Accessories, and

Supplies

0072s

v ACT¡V|T|ES (7 records)

J SUBJECT

j Due Date (.)

j Site Tour (.)

. j S¡teTour(.)

I Site Tour (.)

j S¡te Tour (.)

..) Pre-Proposal Conference (.)

I Avãìlable Date (.)

CLIENT ROLES EMAILADDRESS

B¡dAdmin, Reportviewer dwolfe@snoco.org

FULL NAME

NIGP (Goods & Seru¡ces) > 00725 Rad¡o Communication Equ¡pment,

Accessories, and Supplies

RELATED TO

Bid - RFP-53-1 7DW (/Bids/f876c0ed-
'l 0c0-48c9-ac39-a6debce91 740)

B¡d - RFP 53-1 7Dw (/Bids/f876c0ed-

1 0c0-48c9-âc39-a6debce9'l 740)

Bid - RFP 53-1 7DW (/B¡ds/f876c0ed-

1 0c0-48c9-ac39-a6debce91 740)

Bid - RFP 53-1 7DW (/Bids/f876c0ed-

1 0c0-48c9-ac39-a6debce91 740)

Bid - RFP 53-1 7DW (/Bids/f876c0ed-

1 0c0-48c9-ac39-a6debce91 740)

Bid - RFP 53-1 7DW (/Bids/f876coed-
'I 0c0-48c9-ac39-a6debce91 740)

Bid - RFP-53-1 7DW (/Bids/f876c0ed-

1 0c0-48c9-ac39-a6debce91 740)

DESCRIPTION

The Bìd's Du€ Date

Assemble ¡n the parking lot at 14900 40th Avenue NE #102

Marysville, WA 98271

Assemble in the parking lot at 14900 40th Avenue NE #102

Marysv¡lle, WA 9827'1

Assemble in the park¡ng lot at 14900 40th Avenue NE #'102

Marysville, WA 98271

Assemble in the parking lot at 14900 40th Avenue NE #102

Marysville, WA 98271

RobertJ Drewel Adm¡nistrat¡ve Bu¡ldìng 3000 Rockefeller

Avenue, 6th floor East Everett, WA 98201 Mt. Baker

Conference Room (6402)

The B¡d's Available Dãte

2/21/2018

12t15/2011

12t14/2011

12t't3/2017

12t12/2017

'tzt't1 /2011

11 t17/2017

l, NOTES AND ATTACHMENTS - INTERNAL ONLY (NOT VISIBLE TO VENDORS) Ê (0 records)

@ 2O19 5 Procureware@ (http://www.procureware.com) by Bentley Systems, lnc. (http://wram.bentley.com) All rights reserved.

https:i/snoco.procureware.com/Bids/f876c0ed-'10c0-48c9-ac39-a6debce91740?t=Setup&t2=Settings

ü,7'+ü

2t2

50



SNO911 

Radio Reimbursement Process 

2-4-2020 

 

Quote Process 

SNO911 will work with the agency to determine the radio needed and get a quote from 
Motorola. Once the agency has a quote they will provide a purchase order directly to Motorola.  

 

 

Reimbursement Process 

SNO911 will reimburse the agency for the radio. We suggest that the agencies keep the 
following information and provide this at time of reimbursement request:  

 

Upon delivery of equipment to the Agency, the following will be provided to 
SNO911 via email at “WTOrders@sno911.org”: 

a. The original quote from Motorola 

b. Proof of payment to Motorola 

c. Proof of receipt from Motorola (e.g. packing slip) 
 

Once this information is received by SNO911 we can begin the reimbursement process.  

Thank you in advance for your help in this matter. 

 

Michael Gallagher 

SNO911 Project Manager 

 

 

51



 - 1 -  

INTERLOCAL   COOPERATIVE   PURCHASE   AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is entered into between the undersigned, municipal corporations of the State of 
Washington. 

It is the purpose of this Agreement to provide for the cooperative purchase of materials, supplies and 
equipment by the parties to this Agreement when determined by the legislative body of a participating 
party to be in the best interest of such party.  This Agreement is entered into under the authority of 
the Interlocal Cooperation Act, chapter 39.34 RCW. 

It is agreed by the parties as follows: 

1. Term.  The term of this Agreement in respect to each party to this Agreement shall commence 
on the date of execution of the Agreement by that party and shall remain in effect until terminated 
by a party as provided in paragraph 5 of this Agreement. 

2. Cooperative Purchase. Each party agrees to provide in bid proposals and specifications 
appropriate language to authorize and permit the other parties to the Agreement to purchase such 
materials, supplies and equipment under the terms and conditions of the purchase contract 
awarded by such party. Provided, however, the parties shall not be required to include such 
language when, in the sole discretion of the party going out to bid, the party determines that such 
language is not in the best interest of the party. The bid language to be included should be 
substantially as follows:  “Interlocal Bids.  Bids shall be subject to chapter 39.34 RCW, the 
Interlocal Cooperation Act, under which other governmental agencies may purchase through the 
bid proposal accepted.” 

3. Discretion. The determination of whether or not any party to this Agreement shall purchase 
materials, supplies or equipment under the terms and conditions of any purchase contract 
available to, or entered into, by the other parties under a statutory bidding procedure shall be 
made by the legislative body of the party desiring to make such purchase. 

3. Financial Responsibility.  Each party shall remain financially responsible for the payment of 
the purchase price of all materials, supplies and equipment purchased and received by such party 
under the terms of this Agreement. 

4. Ownership.  Title to all items purchased by any party to this Agreement shall remain in the name 
of such party. 

5. Termination.  Any party to this Agreement may terminate its participation in the Agreement by 
giving the other parties to the Agreement 30 days written notice of such intent to terminate. 

6. Limitations.   The parties shall not jointly acquire property or jointly budget funds under the 
authority of this Agreement. 

7. Statutory Compliance.  Each party agrees to comply with the statutory bidding requirements 
applicable to such party when acting under this Agreement. 

8. Administration.  No new or separate legal or administrative entity is created to administer the 
provisions of this agreement. 

52



 - 2 -  

9. Right to Contract – Independent Action Preserved.  Each party reserves the right to contract 
independently for the acquisition of goods or services without notice to the other party and shall 
not bind or otherwise obligate the other party to participate in the activity. 

10. Hold Harmless.   Each party shall indemnify, defend and hold the other party harmless from any 
liability arising from any negligent or wrongful act or failure to act on the part of itself and its 
employees.  Neither party assumes responsibility to the other party for the consequences of any 
act or omission of any person, firm or corporation not a party to this agreement. 

 
 
Dated: ____________________, 20__  Dated: ____________________, 20__ 
 
 Snohomish County 911 Snohomish County Fire District #7  
   
 
 
By :  By :  
   
 
 

53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

OLD BUSINESS - ACTION 
 

63



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

NEW BUSINESS - DISCUSSION 
 

64



1626 Cole Blvd, Suite 325
Golden, CO 80401
Voice: 303-301-7300    Fax: 303-384-9014

Customer : Snohomish County Fire District 7 Quote ID
Contact: Document Date
Email: Quote Expires:
Phone:

1.0 Notes and Assumptions

Quoted:
V1.1

V1.0

Part Num Description Qty Unit Cost Total

2.0 Station Software and Hardware
 2.1 Software (Standardized)

 SSL-STA 1 2,415 2,415

 
SSL-VSB-ST 1 1,805 1,805

 SSL-VSC-01 1 935 935

 2.2 Software (Custom/Interfaces)
 none defined
 2.3 Hardware - Basic

 

LCPN32-EZ 1 5,550 5,550

 MPCA 1 1,400 1,400

 
LIAS30 1 655 655

 RHL-RIA30 1 795 795

 TWIR-AV 1 630 630

 LSWI-DN 1 125 125
 ( Subtotal $9,155 )

Does not include installation.  Includes installation oversight.

Day/Night Switch

Radio Interface Unit - Active

Station PC Assembly

PrimeAlert Remote Client. Provides full 
functionality station audio dispatching

Control Panel, EZ-Zone: includes system power, 
12 relays, 12 optically isolated inputs, wire 
management, 120V surge-protection and 
isolation, with locked front panel door access.

Intelligent Audio Switch:
Supplies Muting of up to 3 audio channels
previously connected to P.A. Amp

PrimeAlert Remote Client add-on module for 
relay switching and advanced zoned 
audio/lighting (up to 10 devices)
PrimeAlert Remote Client add-on module for 1 
Zone Tracker (for zoned systems)

Station 71 (EZ-Zone)

11/12/2019
5/12/2020

SNOFD7-1911-ST71-EZ-ZONE-V1.1

Includes full project management.

Locution PrimeAlert IP add-on system (ties into existing or soon to be added head-end system - the head-
end system must be in place for this system to be fully functional). Quoted for:

Customer must ensure that good network connectivity exists between the central server and all station 
PCs, in order for the system to be fully functional.

Installation Oversight (INST-OV) price adjusted

It is the Customer's responsibility to ensure 120V power exists within 6' of all Locution provided 
station enclosure(s), amplifier(s), and monitors/zone tracker(s).

Wire required per audio/visual/switch station 
requirements (if applicable)

65



 2.4 Hardware - Audio
 MAMP-A03 1 345 345
 ( Subtotal $345 )
 2.5 Hardware - Visual
 MZTS 1 2,595 2,595

 LNVI-EZ-H 10 645 6,450

 TMUI-FM5 3 549 1,647

 TSTB-IN-W 1 83 83
 
 * requires SSL-VSB software module (see component allowances under SSL-VSB descrip).
 ** requires SSL-VSC software module (see component allowances under SSL-VSC descrip).
 ( Subtotal $10,775 )
 
 Subtotal (Station) $25,430

3.0 Services
 Project Management
 PMGNT Project Management 1 3,000 3,000
 Training
 LOCTR-OPW 0 4,100 not bid
 LOCTR-TECW 0 4,100 not bid
 INST-OV Installation Oversight (Installer Training) 1 3,500 3,500
 Installation

 
INSTF-BS 0 not bid not bid

 INSTF-AV 0 not bid not bid
 Travel
 TRV01 Travel (or Remote Costs) 0 1,750 0
 
 Subtotal (Services) $6,500

4.0 Totals (Categorized by Software, Hardware, Services)
Software $5,155
Hardware $20,275
Services (excluding any defined installation) $6,500
SubTotal (w/o install, maint, options) $31,930
Installation not bid
Subtotal $31,930
Sales Tax @ 9.3% $2,969.49
Total (US Dollars) $34,899.49

5.0 Support Maintenance Costs
Note: Maintenance is not included in the total price & begins after the 1 Year Warranty Period
 has ended. Does not include Server Hardware in Support Maintenance Costs.

MAINT01 Includes annual maintenance for:
PrimeAlert Station Software Client 290
PrimeAlert Station Software Client Add-ons (for Visual Devices) 329
Station Control Panel(s) 666
Intelligent Audio Switch(es) 79
Radio Interface Unit(s) 95
Switches (Ack, DayNt, Doorbell) 15
Amplifiers 41
Zone Tracker(s) 311
LED Lighting 774
Strobe(s) 10

Subtotal (Annual Maintenance) $2,610

Station Zone Tracker (Touch Panel)

Installation - Base System - Any visual or audio 
component installation is listed as a separate 
line item.

PrimeAlert Technical Training (WebEx)

Installation - Audio/Visual Components

Strobe Light - Indoor Wall Mount

PrimeAlert Operation Training (WebEx)

Night Vision Illuminator LED - Wall Mount - EZ-
Zone - Horizontal*

Amplifier - Single 35W

Multi-unit Indicator Light - Flush Mount - LED 5 
position*

66



 

3/4/2020 
Paramedic Test Standard Adjustments 2020 
 
 
Overview  

 
Snohomish County Fire District 7 and IAFF Local 2781 agree to a onetime adjustment in 

the minimal grade requirements for Probationary Firefighter Paramedic Trainee and the 
associated testing timelines. This agreement would allow the District to create an eligibility list 
based upon the conditions listed below. Such a list shall be governed by the same standards as 
all other promotional eligibility lists per Section 21.2 of the CBA. This agreement is seen as a 
one-time non-precedent setting adjustment.    
 
Background  

 
The District is actively seeking candidates for the position of Probationary Firefighter 

Paramedic Trainee and has specific timeline requirements associated with the Harborview 
Paramedic Training Program. The District currently has no applicants for the position of 
Probationary Firefighter Paramedic Trainee that meet the grade requirement of one (1) year 
time in grade as a Firefighter 3.  
 
One Time Adjustments  

 
The District and the Union agree to an adjusted requirement for Probationary Firefighter 

Paramedic Trainee:  
• Firefighter 1 or higher    
• Upon promotion the candidate’s pay rate will be adjusted to Probationary Firefighter 

Paramedic Trainee (106% of FF3)  
• The candidate has 24 months from promotion date to Probationary Firefighter 

Paramedic Trainee (first day of Harborview program) to meet the requirement for 
Firefighter 2 & Firefighter 3 as outlined in Section 22.1. If FF3 requirements are not met 
with in the 24 months then the pay rate will be reduced to 96% of FF3 until the 
requirements are met. If the FF2 requirements are not met with in the 24 months then 
the pay rate will be reduced to 86% of FF3 until the requirements are met.  

 
The District and the Union agree to an adjusted testing timeline for Probationary Firefighter 

Paramedic Trainee: 
• The District will provide testing according to the following timeline; 

o First Day to File April 1st & Test Material made Available at time of 
Announcement  

o Last Day to Submit a Letter of Intent April 9th  
o Last Day to File Completed Application Packet April 23rd  
o Test Dates May 11th – 15th  

 

67



68



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

NEW BUSINESS - ACTION 
 

69



Memorandum of Understanding 
by and between 

Snohomish County Fire District #7  
and the 

International Association of Firefighters Local #2781 
MOU #2020-__ 

 

Overview 

It is foreseen that during the next few months Covid 19 will potentially affect call 
volumes.  SCFD 7 and Local 2781 agree that certain positions are important and 
need to be filled, available to support operations and be a resource on calls that 
involve exposures.  It is important to staff the MSO’s position as regularly as 
possible to be that resource.  This agreement is seen as a one-time non-precedent 
setting adjustment. 

Background 

The District and Local 2781 have no current language that covers the Acting 
MSO’s positions.  The District and Local 2781 agree to create an Acting MSO’s 
position and Local 2781 will create a callback list and procedure to fill the MSO’s 
position with actors when required by the District.   

Compensation 

The District and Local 2781 agree that when working in the MSO role a LT 
paramedic will be compensated at a primary paramedic rate.  Should a non-
primary Paramedic be assigned to the acting MSO position that is normally 
compensated at seven percent (7%) they will be compensated twelve percent 
(12%) for that shift.  Those non-primary paramedics that are grandfathered and 
are currently compensated at twelve percent (12%) will receive their regular rate 
for shifts worked as acting MSO.  

Current compensation rates: 

• MSO                                                                       125% + 12% = 137% 
• LT II Grandfathered non primary Paramedic  119% + 12% = 131% 
• LT II Non primary paramedic                             119% + 7% = 126% 

70



• LT I Non primary paramedic                              113% + 7% = 120% 
• Probationary LT Non primary paramedic        109% + 7% = 116% 

Proposed acting MSO compensation rates: 

• MSO                                                                         125% + 12% = 137% 
• LT II Grandfathered non primary Paramedic    119% + 12% = 131% 
• LT II Non primary paramedic                               119% + 12% = 131% 
• LT I Non primary paramedic                                113% + 12% = 125% 
• Probationary LT Non primary paramedic          109% + 12% = 121% 

Compensation for acting MSO pay shall have a retroactive application of March 7, 
2020. 

Term   

The term of this MOU shall be effective immediately upon signing and shall 
terminate upon receipt of notice of termination by the District. 

No Waiver, Amendment or Past Practice  

Except as provided herein during the term of this MOU, the parties retain all 
rights under RCW 41.56 and applicable law regarding the Acting MSO position. 
The execution of this MOU shall not be deemed to be, or construed as, a waiver 
of the District’s management rights or an amendment to the CBA. Further, the 
parties agree the terms of this MOU do not create a past practice and that it may 
not be used as evidence of such in any proceeding. 

 

Signed this _____day of March, 2020. 

 

_____________________________  _____________________________ 

Kevin O’Brien – Fire Chief   Craig Fisher – Local 2781-Vice Chair 

 

71



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

72



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

OTHER MEETINGS ATTENDED 
 

73



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

74


	01 Board Meeting Cover
	02 Agenda
	02.01 Agenda 20-03-12

	03 Fire Chief Report
	03.01 Chief's Report 3.12.20-1
	03.02 Home & Family -1(2) edited

	04 Consent Agenda
	04.01 Payroll Benefit Vouchers 20-00581 to 20-00598
	04.02 AP Vouchers 20-00599 to 20-00715
	04.03 2020-02-27 Minutes

	05a Old Business - Discussion
	05a.01 Capital Facilities Plan
	05a.02 Standards of Cover Proposal - 8-April-2019
	05a.03 BOC Standards of Cover 2020-02-13
	05a.04 Sno911M6_10_19CooperativePurchasing(Motorola)
	05a.05 SNO911 Reimbursement Process
	05a.06 Sno911 K3_25_19Piggyback District 7
	INTERLOCAL   COOPERATIVE   PURCHASE   AGREEMENT

	05a.07 Grounds Maintenace Contract-North Battalion-GroundWorks Landscaping

	05b Old Business - Action
	06a New Business - Discussion
	06a.01 Quote-SNOFD7-1911-St71-EZ-Zone-V1.1
	06a.02 ParamedicTestStandardAdjustment_2020_asof_3.4.2020
	06a.03 Commercial Driver

	06b New Business - Action
	06b.01 Acting MSO MOU 2020_  03_10_2020

	07 Committee Reports
	08 Other Meetings Attended
	09 Executive Session



